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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Community Transit
Snohomish County
January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

The results of our audit of the Community Transit are summarized below in accordance with
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Financial Statements

We issued an unmodified opinion on the fair presentation of the basic financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP).

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

e Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

e Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the
Authority.

Federal Awards

Internal Control over Major Programs:

e Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.

e Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

We issued an unmodified opinion on the Authority’s compliance with requirements applicable to
each of its major federal programs.

We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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Identification of Major Federal Programs:

The following programs were selected as major programs in our audit of compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

CFDA No. Program or Cluster Title

20.500 Federal Transit Cluster — Federal Transit — Capital Investment Grants
20.507 Federal Transit Cluster — Federal Transit — Formula Grants

20.525 Federal Transit Cluster — State of Good Repair Grants Program
20.526 Federal Transit Cluster — Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by
the Uniform Guidance, was $750,000.

The Authority qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance.

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None reported.

SECTION IlIl - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS

None reported.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 5



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Community Transit
Snohomish County
January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2015

Board of Directors

Snohomish County Public Transportation Benefit Area
DBA Community Transit

Everett, Washington

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Community Transit, Snohomish County, Washington, as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated June 21, 2016. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the year
ended December 31, 2015, the Authority implemented Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27, Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 and Statement
No. 82, Pension Issues — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
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deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of the Authority’s compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.
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It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess
government operations.

Touog X Sty

TROY KELLEY
STATE AUDITOR
OLYMPIA, WA

June 21, 2016

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 8



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Community Transit
Snohomish County
January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015

Board of Directors

Snohomish County Public Transportation Benefit Area
DBA Community Transit

Everett, Washington

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM

We have audited the compliance of the Community Transit, Snohomish County, Washington,
with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
the Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2015. The Authority’s
major federal programs are identified in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority’s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the
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audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Authority’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2015.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major federal program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It
also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess
government operations.

Toury X falley

TROY KELLEY
STATE AUDITOR
OLYMPIA, WA

June 21, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Community Transit

Snohomish County
January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2015

Board of Directors

Snohomish County Public Transportation Benefit Area
DBA Community Transit

Everett, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Transit, Snohomish
County, Washington, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial
statements as listed on page 16.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the
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financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Community Transit, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the

changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Matters of Emphasis

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2015, the Authority adopted new
accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, Statement
No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 and Statement No. 82, Pension Issues — an amendment of
GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 16 through 25, pension plan information on
pages 68 through 69 and information on postemployment benefits other than pensions on
page 70 and be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
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information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). This
schedule is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
June 21, 2016 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
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report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Tourg X Sty

TROY KELLEY
STATE AUDITOR
OLYMPIA, WA

June 21, 2016
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Community Transit
Snohomish County
January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2015

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis — 2015 and 2014

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Comparative Statement of Net Position — 2015 and 2014

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position — 2015 and
2014

Comparative Statement of Cash Flows — 2015 and 2014

Notes to Financial Statements — 2015 and 2014

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability — 2015 and 2014
Schedule of Employer Contributions — 2015 and 2014
Information on Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (OPEB) — 2015 and 2014

SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards — 2015
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards — 2015
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This section of Community Transit’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) represents
management’s overview and analysis of Community Transit’s financial performance for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. This section should be read in conjunction with the
financial statements that follow.

Introduction

Community Transit is a public transportation benefit area corporation providing public
transportation services to the Snohomish County community. Services include:

e Local and intercounty bus services.
e Paratransit services for the elderly and disabled.
e Avanpool program and Ridematch services.

e Regional express bus services funded through Sound Transit.

Financial Summary

e As of December 31, 2015, Community Transit’s assets exceeded its liabilities by
$289.9 million. Of this amount, $108.7 million is available to meet our primary goal
of providing service to the public and to be invested in future capital improvements
as discussed in Community Transit’s six-year plan.

e Community Transit’s total net position increased by $31.4 million.
e Capital grants and contributions amounted to $26.6 million.

e Community Transit’s primary source of funding is from local sales taxes. In 2015,
sales tax revenue increased by $4.9 million.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis section serves as an introduction to Community Transit’s basic
financial statements. Community Transit is a stand-alone enterprise fund, and our financial
statements report information using the accrual basis of accounting, a method similar to those
used by private-sector businesses. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned,
and expenses are recorded as soon as they result in liabilities for benefits received.

The Comparative Statements of Net Position present information about all of Community
Transit’s assets and liabilities. The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as net
position. When net position is compared for several years, increases and decreases may serve
as useful indicators of whether Community Transit’s financial position is improving or
deteriorating.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

The Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present
information showing how Community Transit’s net position changed during the fiscal year. All
changes in net position are reported as soon as the event occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows.

The Comparative Statements of Cash Flows present information on Community Transit’s cash
receipts, cash payments, and changes in cash and cash equivalents during the fiscal year.

The basic financial statements can be found following this Management Discussion and
Analysis. The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. Notes to the Financial
Statements can be found following the basic financial statements.

Community Transit’s Financial Position

Community Transit’s overall financial position improved in 2015. Net investment in capital
assets increased by $21.3 million, restricted net position increased by less than $0.1 million,
and unrestricted net position increased by $10.2 million. This resulted in an increase in total net
position of $31.4 million.

Current assets net of current liabilities amounted to $152.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015, as compared to $141.9 million for 2014 and $127.5 for 2013.

Sales tax revenues increased by 6.2 percent for 2015, as compared to a 6.4 percent increase for
2014 and a 10.8 percent increase for 2013.

Cash reserves available to meet current and future obligations increased to $123.7 million in
2015 from $131.4 million in 2014 and $114.2 million in 2013. Of these reserves, $2.4 million
was restricted for debt service and workers’ compensation claims. As of December 31, 2015,
Community Transit had no long-term public financing debt.

Financial Analysis

For the year ended December 31, 2015, Community Transit’s assets exceeded liabilities by
$289.9 million. A summary of Community Transit’s net position follows.

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 18



Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

Summary Statement of Net Position

2015 2014 2013
Assets:
Current and Other Noncurrent Assets $ 169,078,532 $ 157,056,702 $ 141,847,776
Capital Assets 179,250,685 159,711,281 164,963,426
Total Assets 348,329,217 316,767,983 306,811,202
Deferred Outflows of Resources: 4,688,614 1,673,937 40,286
Liabilities:
Current and Other Liabilities 17,119,756 15,112,596 14,340,095
Noncurrent Liabilities 40,923,503 33,964,727 10,505,660
Total Liabilities 58,043,259 49,077,323 24,845,755
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 178,831,358 157,546,954 161,104,099
Restricted 2,355,611 2,292,861 2,314,361
Unrestricted 108,731,233 98,671,998 118,587,273
Total Net Position $ 289,918,202 $ 258,511,813 $ 282,005,733

Public transportation is a capital-intensive enterprise. Consequently, 61.7 percent of
Community Transit’s net position was invested in capital assets in 2015, as compared to

60.9 percent in 2014 and 57.1 in 2013. Because these capital assets are used to provide services
to citizens, they are not available for future spending.

External restrictions on assets affected 0.8 percent of net position in 2015, 2014, and 2013.
Community Transit’s Board of Directors designated 27.2 percent of total net position for vehicle
replacements and other capital improvements in 2015 compared to 29.8 percent in 2014 and
23.6 percent for 2013. An additional $2.3 million was designated for workers’ compensation in
2015; correspondingly, $1.8 million was designated in 2014 and $1.2 million in 2013. The
remaining $27.7 million in 2015 is available to support our public obligation for future transit
operations as compared to $20.0 million in 2014 and $51.0 million in 2013. Additional
information regarding net position can be obtained from Note 10 in the Notes to the Financial
Statements section.

Due to the implementation of GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions —an amendment of GASB Statement No 27, Deferred Outflows of Resourses increased
$3.0 million in 2015, and $1.6 million in 2014.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

Community Transit’s net position increased by $31.4 million during the current fiscal year. Key
elements of this increase follow.

Summary Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

2015 2014 2013

Operating Revenues:

Passenger Fares $ 20,798,527 $ 19,769,863 $ 19,331,239

Regional Transit Service 16,600,685 16,870,539 16,402,918

Advertising 901,627 836,580 784,946
Nonoperating Revenues:

Subsidies 92,768,390 87,315,853 83,455,798

Other Revenues 500,445 750,209 748,945

Total Revenues 131,569,674 125,543,044 120,723,846

Expenses:

Operations and Maintenance 63,590,182 58,801,929 55,685,100

General and Administrative 22,396,557 21,012,151 19,748,865

Contracted Transportation 23,797,411 23,370,984 22,547,152

Depreciation and Amortization 16,886,860 15,150,735 15,573,477

Nonoperating Expenses 55,401 99,684 120,544

Total Expenses 126,726,411 118,435,483 113,675,138

Net Income (Loss) Before Contributions 4,843,263 7,107,561 7,048,708

Capital Grants and Contributions 26,563,126 3,201,352 9,801,132
Total Change in Net Position 31,406,389 10,308,913 16,849,840
Net Position—Beginning of Year 258,511,813 282,005,733 265,155,893

Prior Period Adjustment for Change in

Accounting Principle - (33,802,833) -
Net Position—Beginning of Year Restated 258,511,813 248,202,900 265,155,893
Net Position—End of Year $ 289,918,202 $ 258,511,813 $ 282,005,733
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

Revenues

During 2015, revenues increased by $6.0 million, or 4.8 percent. Revenues from major sources
are illustrated in the following chart:

2015 Revenues by Source

Passenger
Fares
16%

Regional
______Transit Service
13%

\ Advertising
and Other
Revenues

1%

Subsidies
70%

The major components of the overall increase in revenues were sales tax and fares.

Subsidies include sales tax revenue and operating grants. State and federal subsidies increased
S0.5 million in 2015 and decreased $0.9 million in 2014, while sales tax revenue increased in
2015 and 2014. This resulted in total subsidies increasing by $5.5 million, or 6.2 percent, over
the preceding year and $3.9 million, or 4.6 percent, when comparing 2014 to 2013.

Sales tax revenues increased by 6.2 percent in 2015, resulting in an additional $4.9 million in
sales tax revenue. In 2014, the increase was 6.4 percent, or $4.8 million, when compared to
2013. The increases in sales tax are attributed to improvements in the local economy.

Regional transit service revenues decreased $0.3 million, or 1.6 percent, in 2015. The 2014
increase was $S0.5 million, or 2.9 percent, when compared to 2013. The 2015 decrease reflected
current service levels and contract rates.

Passenger fares for 2015 increased by $1.0 million, or 5.2 percent, over the preceding year.
Fares increased for 2014 when compared to 2013 by $0.4 million, or 2.3 percent.

Advertising and other revenues decreased in 2015 by $0.2 million, or 11.6 percent. The increase
in 2014 when compared to 2013 was $0.1 million, or 3.4 percent.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

The following chart compares revenues by major source for 2015, 2014, and 2013.

2015,2014,2013 Comparative Revenues
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Expenses

During 2015, expenses increased by $8.3 million, or 7.0 percent. The increase is due primarily to
an increase in service hours, salaries and benefits, and staffing levels. Although fuel prices
continued to decline in 2015, the number of gallons consumed increased with the increase in
service.

Operations and maintenance expenses in 2015 increased by $4.8 million, or 8.1 percent. The
2014 operations and maintenance expenses when compared to 2013 increased by $3.1 million,
or 5.6 percent. General and administrative expenses increased by $1.4 million, or 6.5 percent in
2015. The 2014 general and administrative expenses when compared to 2013 increased by
$1.3 million, or 6.4 percent.

Contracted transportation expenses increased by $0.4 million, or 1.8 percent. This increase
reflects an increase in service hours. The 2014 contracted transportation expenses when
compared to 2013 increased by $0.8 million, or 3.7 percent.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

The next chart summarizes expenses by major function.

2015 Expenses by Function
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Depreciation and other nonoperating expenses increased $1.7 million, or 11.1 percent. The
increase is primarily attributed to an increase in capital assets via the purchase of coaches and
capitalization of the transit technologies suite of information systems. The 2014 depreciation

and other nonoperating expenses when compared to 2013 decreased by $0.4 million, or

2.8 percent.

The following chart compares expenses by function for 2015, 2014, and 2013.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

Capital Assets

Capital assets include revenue vehicles, support vehicles, land and buildings, equipment, and
passenger facilities.

As of December 31, 2015, Community Transit’s investment in capital assets amounted to
$179.3 million, net of accumulated depreciation. Capital assets increased by 12.2 percent
during 2015.

Major acquisitions during 2015 included:

e 16 Double Tall coaches in the amount of $14.4 million.
e 19 forty-foot coaches in the amount of $9.2 million.

e KPOB pavement replacement in the amount of $3.7 million.

For additional information on Community Transit’s capital assets, please see Note 5 in the
Notes to the Financial Statements section.

Debt Administration

In June 2010, Community Transit sold $5,240,000 in limited sales tax general obligation
refunding bonds. The bonds were sold on a competitive bid basis and carried a rate of

3 percent. Payment of the bonds will be made from a portion of Community Transit sales tax
revenue. The 2010 bond issue was rated Aa2 by Moody’s Investors Service and AA+ by S&P
Global Ratings (formerly Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services). The resulting funds were used
to refund the 2004 bond issue outstanding and to pay the cost of issuing the 2010 bonds. The
monies used to fund the bond reserve account continue to earn interest, while the funds
allocated to pay for the bond issuance costs are reflected in the Comparative Statements of Net
Position. For additional information on Community Transit’s bonds payable, please see Note
9(A) in the Notes to the Financial Statements section.

Under Washington State law, bonds secured by and payable from sales tax revenues are
general obligations of the issuer and are subject to this debt limitation: The bonds may not
exceed 0.375 percent of the value of taxable property within the agency’s boundaries. Larger
amounts may be approved with a public vote.

Assessed valuation in 2015 for collection of taxes in 2016 $67,905,520,501
Maximum nonwvoted debt capacity at 0.375 percent of valuation 254,645,702
Less outstanding bond issues - net 1,810,857
Nonwoted debt capacity remaining $ 252,834,845
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets

On June 7, 2015, Community Transit initiated a 27,000 annualized hour service increase. This
increase restored service on Sundays and holidays and represents slightly less than 20 percent
of the service cut during the economic downturn. The June service expansion also added
several trips to downtown Seattle and the University of Washington. A few route changes and
off-peak trip additions were implemented as well. The following press release provides
additional detail: http://www.commtrans.org/newsrelease/1605.

OnJuly 1, 2015, fares increased by 25 cents for all adult local and commuter trips, as well as for
dial-a-ride transportation paratransit trips. This helps keep fare revenues in line with expenses
and prevents “sticker shock” that can occur with larger, more infrequent fare changes.

Snohomish County voters approved Proposition 1 on November 3, 2015. Proposition 1
authorized Community Transit to begin collecting an additional three-tenths of 1 percent sales
and use tax effective April 1, 2016. Due to the passage of Proposition 1 and the related
increased retail sales tax revenue, Community Transit has planned substantial service increases
in 2016, 2017, and 2018 and more modest increases from 2019 through 2021. A small increase
of about 4,700 annualized revenue hours occurred in March 2016, and a larger increase of
32,000 annualized hours, including two new bus routes and numerous service enhancements,
will occur in September 2016. The agency plans to add approximately 27,000 annualized hours
in 2017, and 45,000 annualized hours—related to a new Swift Il bus rapid transit line—will be
added in 2018.

More information regarding the 2016 budget can be obtained at www.commtrans.org/budget/.
The 2016 original budget is summarized below:

2016 Budget in millions
Operating Fund Revenues $ 133.8
Capital Grants and Contributions 30.1
Other Revenues 0.1
Total Budgeted Revenues $ 164.0
Operating Fund Expenditures $ 121.3
Capital Projects 66.3
Workers' Compensation Fund 2.6
Debt Senvice 1.9

Total Budgeted Expenditures $ 192.1
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Cont'd)

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Community Transit’s finances
for anyone who has an interest. Questions concerning any of the information presented in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to:
Lori Fox, Controller
Community Transit
7100 Hardeson Road
Everett, WA 98203
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Community Transit
Comparative Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents S
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable and Accrued Interest
Due from Other Governments
Maintenance Parts Inventory
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Intangible Property
Work in Progress

Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation):
Buildings
Site Improvements
Vehicles, Machinery, and Equipment
Intangible Property

Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pensions

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $

2015 2014
121,382,800 129,076,978
2,355,611 2,292,861
273,939 51,050
43,648,411 24,328,716
1,298,479 1,239,442
119,292 67,655
169,078,532 157,056,702
14,330,617 14,212,114
1,800,680 1,800,680
18,517,020 19,896,141
36,181,149 35,884,256
19,024,186 16,621,349
85,698,054 66,447,079
3,698,979 4,849,662
179,250,685 159,711,281
179,250,685 159,711,281
348,329,217 316,767,983
4,688,614 1,673,937
4,688,614 1,673,937
353,017,831 $ 318,441,920

Continued on the following page.
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Community Transit
Comparative Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2015 and 2014
(Continued)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,

and Net Position

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Liabilities 2015 2014
Current Liabilities:
Warrants, Accounts Payable, and Accrued Expenses S 6,439,064 S 5,945,622
Accrued Payroll Liabilities 2,693,307 2,172,966
Compensated Absences Payable 3,461,688 2,850,388
Unearned Revenue 1,852,340 1,549,807
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Interest Payable 22,500 44,313
Bonds Payable - Current Portion 1,810,857 1,745,000
Provision for Workers' Compensation Claims 840,000 804,000
Total Current Liabilities 17,119,756 15,112,596
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences Payable 1,021,199 1,171,179
Provision for Workers' Compensation Claims 1,569,000 1,621,000
Net Pension Liability 32,922,782 24,623,986
Other Postemployment Benefits 5,410,522 4,708,569
Bonds Payable - Net - 1,839,993
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 40,923,503 33,964,727
Total Liabilities 58,043,259 49,077,323
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pensions 5,056,370 10,852,784
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,056,370 10,852,784
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 178,831,358 157,546,954
Restricted For:
Debt Service 551,861 551,861
Workers' Compensation 1,803,750 1,741,000
Unrestricted 108,731,233 98,671,998
Total Net Position 289,918,202 258,511,813

$ 353,017,831

$ 318,441,920
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Operating Revenues:
Passenger Fares
Regional Transit Service

Advertising

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:

Operations
Maintenance

General and Administrative
Contracted Transportation
Depreciation and Amortization

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Subsidies

Investment Income

Miscellaneous

Interest Expense
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Income Before Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of Year
Prior Period Adjustment for Change in Accounting

Principle

Net Position - Beginning of Year, Restated

Net Position - End of Year

Community Transit
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
20,798,527 19,769,863
16,600,685 16,870,539

901,627 836,580
38,300,839 37,476,982
40,771,330 34,908,009
22,818,852 23,893,920
22,396,557 21,012,151
23,797,411 23,370,984
16,886,860 15,150,735
126,671,010 118,335,799

(88,370,171)

(80,858,817)

92,768,390 87,315,853
141,991 51,917
122,074 323,544
(55,401) (99,684)
236,380 374,748

93,213,434 87,966,378
4,843,263 7,107,561
26,563,126 3,201,352
31,406,389 10,308,913
258,511,813 282,005,733
- (33,802,833)
258,511,813 248,202,900

$ 289,918,202

$ 258,511,813

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Community Transit
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received for Operating Revenues
Cash Received for Miscellaneous Revenue
Cash Paid to Vendors for Goods and Services
Cash Paid for Employee Services and Benefits

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Operating Subsidies

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing
Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Acquisition of Capital Assets

Capital Grants and Contributions

Principal Payment on Bonds

Interest Paid on Bonds

Proceeds From the Sale of Capital Assets
Net Cash Used for Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Investment Income

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

Continued on the following page.
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

2015 2014
38,278,296 $ 36,031,739
83,652 345,420
(48,304,719) (48,666,440)
(60,626,915) (53,630,110)

(70,569,686)

(65,919,391)

93,135,477 88,788,008
93,135,477 88,788,008
(35,753,039) (9,705,309)

7,016,953 5,385,444
(1,745,000) (1,695,000)
(106,350) (157,200)
248,226 383,595
(30,339,210) (5,788,470)
141,991 51,917
141,991 51,917
(7,631,428) 17,132,064
131,369,839 114,237,775

$ 123,738,411

$ 131,369,839
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Community Transit
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

(Continued)

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used for
Operating Activities:
Operating Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used for Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization

Miscellaneous Revenue

Pensions

Change in Assets - Decrease (Increase):
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Governments
Maintenance Parts Inventory
Prepaid Expenses

Change in Deferred Outflows of Resources -
Decrease (Increase):
Accumulated Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging
Derivative

Change in Liabilities - Increase (Decrease):
Warrants, Accounts Payable, and Accrued Expenses
Accrued Payroll Liabilities
Compensated Absences Payable
Unearned Revenue
Provision for Workers' Compensation Claims
Other Postemployment Benefits

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities

2015

2014

S (88,370,171)

16,886,860
122,074
(512,295)

(222,889)
(140,609)
(59,037)
(51,637)

(191,629)
520,341
460,820
302,533

(16,000)
701,953

S (80,858,817)

15,150,735
323,544

1,983
(1,643,569)
(144,759)

53,236

29,738

(146,834)
247,248
254,253
218,219
113,000
482,632

$ (70,569,686)

$ (65,919,391)

Schedule of Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities

Capital Grants and Contributions contain no noncash capital contributions.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Community Transit
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2015

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

The Snohomish County Public Transportation Benefit Area Corporation, dba Community Transit,
was authorized to begin operation of a public transportation system in 1976. The agency was
incorporated under the provisions of Washington State law pertaining to public transportation
benefit area corporations (RCW 36.57A) and operates under the control of a Board of Directors.

Community Transit has an undivided interest in a nonequity joint venture, jointly governed with
six other agencies for the provision of regional smart card fare (ORCA) collection services.
Community Transit’s undivided interests in the assets, liabilities and operations of the ORCA
smart card are consolidated within these financial statements on a proportionate basis.

In fiscal year 2015, Community Transit implemented Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, GASB
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement
Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, and GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues—
an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73.

GASB Statement No. 68 requires governments providing defined benefit pensions for their
employees to recognize their proportional share of the pension plan’s net pension liability or
asset, which is measured as total pension liability less the amount of the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position. The statement also establishes standards for measuring and recognizing
pension liabilities or assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and
pension expenses. For defined benefit pensions, this statement identifies the methods and
assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit
payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of
employee service. Prior to implementing GASB Statement No. 68, employers participating in a
cost-sharing plan recognized annual pension expense equal to their contractually required
contribution to the plan.

GASB Statement No. 71 amends GASB Statement No. 68 regarding the deferred outflows of
resources for governments whose current year pension contributions are reported subsequent
to the measurement date. GASB Statement No. 82 amends GASB Statement No. 68 regarding
the presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information.

Community Transit adopted these statements effective January 1, 2014. The collective financial
impact resulting from the implementation of these GASB statements is the restatement of 2014
unrestricted net position, reducing it by $33,802,833 for Community Transit’s portion of the net
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pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources incurred in
prior years.

B. Basis of Accounting

The accounting policies of Community Transit conform to generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to governmental units. Community Transit applies all applicable GASB
pronouncements.

Community Transit uses an enterprise fund to account for its operations and prepares its
financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded as soon as the benefits are received.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing transportation services.
Community Transit’s primary operating revenues include:

e Passenger Fares: Charges to customers for transportation services.

e Regional Transit Service: Reimbursements from Sound Transit for providing regional
express bus service.

e Advertising: Revenues earned from advertisements posted on buses.

Operating expenses consist of:

e Transit Operations: Directly operated and provided under contract.
e Vehicle and facility maintenance.
e Administration expenses.

e Depreciation and amortization of capital assets.

All revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses and include:

e Subsidies: tax revenues and operating grants.

e Investmentincome.

e Miscellaneous revenues.

e |nterest expense.

e Gains or losses on the sale of capital assets and maintenance parts inventory.

Community Transit’s accounting records are maintained in accordance with methods
prescribed by the State Auditor under the authority of Washington State law.

Preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
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C. Budget

Community Transit adopts its annual budget in December of the preceding fiscal year. The
budget is based on corporatewide goals and departmental programs and objectives. After these
programs and objectives are developed, revenue for the coming year is estimated. The
estimated revenue is used to determine the level of change in service to be provided the
following year.

Most operating revenues and expenditures are budgeted on the accrual basis. Significant
differences include depreciation and amortization, compensated absences payable, sales tax
revenue, actuarial accrual of future workers’ compensation losses, other postemployment
benefits, and miscellaneous revenues. Debt service is budgeted on a cash basis.

Capital projects are budgeted on a project basis. Projects are budgeted in their entirety when
approved, regardless of anticipated expenditure dates. Each year thereafter, the remaining
unexpended portion of each project, as well as related grant reimbursements, is rebudgeted.

Community Transit encumbers expenditures for management information. Encumbrances do
not constitute a legal reduction of appropriations and are not reported on the financial
statements.

The schedules that follow show budgeted versus actual revenues and expenditures for the
periods ended December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014.

Revenues - Budgeted vs. Actual (Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Over (Under)

2015 Budget 2015 Actuals Budget
Passenger Fares $ 21,539,000 $ 20,798,527 $ (740,473)
Regional Transit Senice 18,530,000 16,600,685 (1,929,315)
Adwertising 650,000 901,627 251,627
Sales Tax 82,047,991 83,358,802 1,310,811
State and Local Grants 21,579,998 8,824,294 (12,755,704)
Federal Grants - Operating 5,712,070 5,382,205 (329,865)
Federal Grants - Capital 32,661,071 20,663,571 (11,997,500)
Investment Income 107,000 141,991 34,991
Miscellaneous 172,500 122,074 (50,426)
Sale of Capital Assets and Inventory 15,000 248,225 233,225
Total Revenues $183,014,630 $157,042,001 $ (25,972,629)
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Revenues - Budgeted vs. Actual (Budgetary Basis)

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Variance
Over (Under)

2014 Budget 2014 Actuals Budget
Passenger Fares $ 19,590,000 $ 19,769,863 $ 179,863
Regional Transit Senice 18,410,000 16,870,539 (1,539,461)
Advertising 790,000 836,580 46,580
Sales Tax 78,120,000 78,951,863 831,863
State and Local Grants 7,604,074 3,590,960 (4,013,114)
Federal Grants - Operating 5,333,000 4,526,912 (806,088)
Federal Grants - Capital 16,460,841 2,847,955 (13,612,886)
Investment Income 122,000 51,917 (70,083)
Miscellaneous 246,000 323,545 77,545
Sale of Capital Assets and Inventory 20,000 383,595 363,595
Total Revenues $ 146,695,915 $128,153,729 $ (18,542,186)

Expenditures - Budgeted vs. Actual (Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Under (Over)

2015 Budget 2015 Actuals Budget
Salaries and Benefits $ 63,884,310 $ 61,255,753 $ 2,628,557
Supplies and Materials 17,528,737 12,117,684 5,411,053
Senices and Other Charges 43,353,872 36,384,757 6,969,115
Intergovernmental 2,499,662 2,212,549 287,113
Capital Acquisitions 90,873,208 33,617,038 57,256,170
Debt Senvice - Principal 1,745,000 1,745,000 -
Debt Senvce - Interest 106,350 106,350 -
Total Expenditures $219,991,139 $147,439,131 $ 72,552,008
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Expenditures - Budgeted vs. Actual (Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Variance
Under (Over)

2014 Budget 2014 Actuals Budget
Salaries and Benefits $ 57,400,584 $ 54,426,512 $ 2,974,072
Supplies and Materials 16,918,199 14,679,309 2,238,890
Senices and Other Charges 38,918,301 33,016,012 5,902,289
Intergovernmental 2,358,979 2,046,505 312,474
Capital Acquisitions 58,940,388 8,070,278 50,870,110
Debt Senice - Principal 1,695,000 1,695,000 -
Debt Senice - Interest 157,200 157,200 -

Total Expenditures $176,388,651 $114,090,816 $ 62,297,835

The following schedule reconciles the accrual to budgetary differences for 2015 and 2014.

2015 2014
$ 158,132,800 $ 128,744,396

Revenues and Capital Grants Reported on the
Accrual Basis

Accruals for Sales Tax (1,102,644) (599,514)
Net Book Value of Retired Equipment 11,845 8,847
Revenues Reported on the Budgetary Basis $ 157,042,001 $128,153,729
2015 2014
Expenses Reported on the Accrual Basis $ 126,726,411 $ 118,435,483
Capital Projects 36,438,109 9,903,437
Accrued Interest Expense 50,949 57,516
Change |ln Actuarial Accrual for 16,000 (113,000)
Workers' Compensation
Change in Compensated Absences Payable (460,820) (254,253)
Change in Actuarial Accrual for
701,953 482,632
Other Postemployment Benefits ( ) ( )
Pension Expense 512,295 -
Debt Senice - Principal 1,745,000 1,695,000

Depreciation and Amortization

Expenses Reported on the Budgetary Basis
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D. Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments
purchased with a remaining maturity of three months or less. Community Transit’s investment
policies are governed by regulations established for public funds by Washington State law.

Community Transit’s investment policy was updated effective October 15, 2015. Safety of
principal continues to be the top priority, with liquidity being the second most important
priority. The investment policy clearly states that safety and liquidity takes precedence over
return on investment. Investments as of December 31, 2015, consisted of demand deposits and
Local Government Investment Pool investments.

Allowable investments are limited to:

e U.S. Treasury obligations.

e U.S. Government agency obligations and U.S. Government sponsored enterprises.
e Banker’s acceptances.

e Commercial paper.

e Certificates of deposit.

e Repurchase agreements.

e Bonds of Washington State and any local government in Washington State.

e General obligation bonds of a state other than Washington State.

e Washington State Local Government Investment Pool

Throughout 2015 Community Transit’s portfolio complied with the investment policies
discussed above. Investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices.
Changes in fair value are included as revenue in the financial statements.

E. Restricted Assets

Funds are classified as restricted assets when their use is limited by bond covenants, state
requirements for workers’ compensation, or other legally binding conditions. As of
December 31, 2015, restricted assets amount to $1,803,750 for the state-required workers’
compensation reserve and $551,861 for bond reserve and interest according to the bond
covenant.

F. Maintenance Parts Inventory

Vehicle maintenance parts are held for consumption and valued at cost using the weighted-
average method. The costs of maintenance parts are recorded as an expense when consumed
rather than when purchased.
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G. Capital Assets and Depreciation

Assets with a useful life in excess of one year are capitalized if the individual cost is at least
$5,000. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated assets are stated at estimated
fair market value as of the date of acquisition. Replacements which improve or extend the lives
of property are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Community Transit participates with the Washington State Department of Transportation in the
construction of passenger park-and-ride facilities within the transit service area. Community
Transit contributes funds to provide the local match required under the terms of federal
construction grants. The State of Washington retains park-and-ride facility ownership, but
Community Transit’s contribution allows us to use these facilities. The rights are valued at the
amount of the contribution made and are reported under capital assets as site improvements.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method (without salvage values) over the
estimated useful life of the asset. When used assets are acquired, they are assigned a useful life
of one-half the new life. Newly acquired assets are assigned useful lives as follows:

Asset Category

Land

Work in Progress

Intangible Property—Easements
Buildings

Site Improvements

Buses

Other Vehicles

Machinery and Equipment
Computer Equipment

Intangible Property

H. Compensated Absences

Years

Not Depreciated
Not Depreciated
Not Depreciated
10to 30
10to 30
12to 15
5
510 10
3to7
3to 10

Policies for the accrual and use of compensated absences vary depending on whether an
employee is represented by a labor contract or subject to the personnel policy. All employees
are covered in the same two plans: paid time off and major sick leave. Paid time off is payable
upon an employee’s termination. Major sick leave is payable at 25 percent of the hours accrued
with the exception of some union employees, who are paid out at 50 percent if retiring. The
portion of major sick leave payable at termination represents the vested portion of major sick

leave earned and is subject to accrual.
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l. Unearned Revenue

Revenues received in advance are recorded as unearned revenue on the Comparative
Statements of Net Position. At December 31, 2015, unearned revenue amounted to
$1,852,340. Of this amount, $100,000 was an advertising insurance security deposit. The
remaining $1,752,340 included ORCA fare revenue amounting to $1,687,431 and payments for
employer Flex Pass contracts expiring in future periods in the amount of $64,909.

J. Pensions

Information about the fiduciary net position of all state-sponsored pension plans and additions
to or deductions from the fiduciary net position of those plans has been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems.
This information was used to measure net liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources, and expenses related to pensions. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Note 2: Cash and Investments

As of December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, Community Transit had the following
investments:

Investment Type 2015 Fair Value 2014 Fair Value

Demand Deposits $ 12,419,071  $ 21,004,708

Local Government Investment Pool 111,319,340 110,365,131
Total $ 123,738,411  $ 131,369,839

Investments as of December 31, 2015, consisted of demand deposits and Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP) investments. The LGIP is an investment trust fund of the state of
Washington operated by the Office of the State Treasurer. The State Finance Committee
provides statutory administrative oversight. The LGIP Advisory Committee provides advice on
the operation of the pool.

Eligible investments are limited only to those investments authorized by state law. The pool is
subject to an annual audit by the Washington State Auditor’s Office. On an annual basis, the
State Treasurer is required to provide a report which summarizes the activities of the
investment pool to the Governor, the State Auditor, and the state legislative budget committee.

The LGIP is an unrated, 2a7-like pool, as defined by GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Pools. Accordingly, participant
balances in the LGIP are not subject to interest risk, as the weighted average maturity of the
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portfolio will not exceed 90 days. Per GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk
Disclosure—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 3, the balances are also not subject to
custodial credit risk. The credit risk of the LGIP is limited, as most investments are either
obligations of the U.S. Government; government-sponsored enterprises; or insured, demand-
deposit accounts and certificates of deposit. Investments or deposits held by the LGIP are all
classified as category 1 risk-level investments. They are either insured or held by a third-party
custody provider in the LGIP’s name.

Interest Rate Risk: Community Transit investment guidelines and policies state that safety of
funds is the number one priority in all investment decisions. The LGIP investment policy
requires a 90-day maximum on the weighted average maturity. Thus, all investments held are
considered to have a low interest rate risk.

Credit Risk: Community Transit’s investment policy has only one direct, credit-risk
requirement. The requirement applies to bonds of Washington State and any local government
in Washington State in which the rating must be one of the three highest credit ratings of a
nationally organized rating agency. Credit risk is indirectly controlled via the kind of investment
instruments allowed by the investment policy and by maturity requirements. The risk ranges
from minimal to none, based on the investment instruments Community Transit holds. There is
no credit risk for federally insured demand deposits.

Funds currently held at the LGIP have minimal to no risk. The LGIP investment policy limits the
types of securities available for investment to obligations of the U.S. Government or its
agencies, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, or obligations of the
state of Washington. All repurchase agreements must be rated AAA and be at least 102 percent
of the value of the agreement.

Custodial Credit Risk: There is no custodial risk for Community Transit’s demand deposits.
Custodial risk is minimal within our investment in the LGIP. The LGIP assets are primarily
allocated in U.S. Government-backed obligations, federally insured demand deposits, and
certificates of deposit. Some exposure is present in the LGIP’s holdings of repurchase
agreements. This exposure has been limited by restrictions that require all agreements must be
rated AAA and the market value of securities utilized in repurchase agreements must be at least
102 percent of the value of the agreement.
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Note 3: Receivables

As of December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, the following amounts were due to
Community Transit:

Accounts Receivable 2015 2014
Fares and Miscellaneous $ 264,576 $ 43,092
ORCA Fiscal Agent Receivables 9,363 7,958

Total Accounts Receivable _$ 273,939  $ 51,050

Due from Other Governments 2015 2014
Sales Tax Received in January and February $ 15,889,647 $ 14,787,003
Operating Grants and Contributions 1,780,050 3,249,781
Capital Grants and Contributions 19,996,710 450,537
Sound Transit Regional Senvice 4,254,047 4,242,449
Fares and Miscellaneous 321,402 306,663
ORCA Fiscal Agent Receivables 1,406,555 1,292,283

Total Due from Other Governments $ 43,648,411 $ 24,328,716
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Note 4. Fuel Hedge

To protect against the potential of rising prices of diesel fuel through the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2014, Community Transit purchased a forward-starting cap at a cost of 5.8 cents
per gallon on 1,774,000 gallons in the amount of $102,892. There is no value at December 31,
2014, or at December 31, 2015; the contract expired on December 31, 2014, and no additional
instruments were purchased after that date.

The cap purchased for fiscal year 2014 qualified for hedge accounting under GASB Statement
No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments; therefore all changes in
fair value are offset by corresponding deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources in the Comparative Statements of Net Position. The fair value of the cap was
estimated using an independent proprietary pricing service.

There were no outstanding hedging derivatives as of December 31, 2015. The following table
displays the objective and terms of the last hedging derivative instrument purchased by
Community Transit, a summary of basic terms of the cap agreement, along with the credit
rating of the counterparty as of December 31, 2013:

Type Objective Notional Effective Date  Maturity Date

Diesel Cap  Hedge of changes in cash flows due to 1,774,000 Gallons 1/1/2014 12/31/2014
market price fluctuations related to
expected purchases of diesel fuel.

Counterparty Ratings

Terms Fair Value  Bank Counterparty Moody’s /S&P /Fitch

US Gulf Coast Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel

Price Cap at $3.200 per Gallon $ 73,154 Barclays Bank PLC A2/AA

Credit Risk, Basis Risk, and Termination Risk: As of December 31, 2015, Community Transit has
no credit risk exposure because the last fuel hedge contract expired December 31, 2014, and
was not replaced with a new contract.
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Note 5: Capital Assets

The tables that follow summarize changes in capital assets for the years ending December 31,

2015, and December 31, 2014, respectively.

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions/ Balance
12/31/2014 Adjustments Retirements 12/31/2015

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land $ 14,212,114 $ 118,503 $ 14,330,617

Work in Progress 19,896,141 (1,379,121) 18,517,020

Intangible Property 1,800,680 1,800,680
Subtotal 35,908,935 (1,260,618) - 34,648,317
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Buildings 56,217,400 2,359,788 58,577,188

Site Improvements 30,984,047 4,016,582 35,000,629

Vehicles/Machinery/Equipment 167,402,203 29,765,945 (2,196,020) 194,972,128

Intangible Property 5,570,258 1,556,412 (12,127) 7,114,543
Subtotal 260,173,908 37,698,727 (2,208,147) 295,664,488
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:

Buildings (20,333,144) (2,062,895) (22,396,039)

Site Improvements (14,362,697) (1,613,746) (15,976,443)

Vehicles/Machinery/Equipment (99,203,387) (12,254,957) 2,184,270 (109,274,074)

Intangible Property (2,472,334) (955,357) 12,127 (3,415,564)
Subtotal (136,371,562) (16,886,955) 2,196,397 (151,062,120)
Total Capital Assets (Net
of Accumulated Depreciation)  $159,711,281  $ 19,551,154  $§ (11,750)  $179,250,685
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Beginning Ending
Balance Additions/ Balance
12/31/2013 Adjustments Retirements 12/31/2014

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:

Land $ 14,212,114 $ 14,212,114

Work in Progress 20,086,758 (190,617) 19,896,141

Intangible Property 1,761,362 39,318 1,800,680
Subtotal 36,060,234 (151,299) - 35,908,935
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Buildings 54,070,170 2,153,150 (5,920) 56,217,400

Site Improvements 30,883,461 347,122 (246,536) 30,984,047

Vehicles/Machinery/Equipment 170,787,251 7,041,775 (10,426,823) 167,402,203

Intangible Property 5,053,569 516,689 5,570,258
Subtotal 260,794,451 10,058,736 (10,679,279) 260,173,908
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:

Buildings (18,463,230) (1,875,834) 5,920 (20,333,144)

Site Improvements (13,265,216) (1,344,017) 246,536 (14,362,697)

Vehicles/Machinery/Equipment (98,264,285) (11,357,078) 10,417,976 (99,203,387)

Intangible Property (1,898,528) (573,806) (2,472,334)
Subtotal (131,891,259) (15,150,735) 10,670,432 (136,371,562)
Total Capital Assets, Net
of Accumulated Depreciation $ 164,963,426 $ (5,243,298) % (8,847) $159,711,281

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 44



Note 6: Pension Plan

The table below represents the aggregate pension amounts for all Community Transit plans for
the years 2015 and 2014, subject to the requirements of GASB Statement 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement No 27.

Aggregate Pension Amounts:
PERS Plans 1, 2, and 3

2015 2014
Pension Liability $ 32,922,782 $ 24,623,986
Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 4,688,614 $ 1,673,937
Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 5,056,370 $ 10,852,784
Pension Expense $ 3,716,047 $ 3,332,623

Substantially all of Community Transit’s full-time and qualifying part-time employees
participate in the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). This statewide retirement
system is administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems as cost-
sharing, multiple-employer, public-employee, defined-benefit, and defined-contribution
retirement plans. The state Legislature establishes, and amends, laws pertaining to the creation
and administration of all public retirement systems.

The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of
the state of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFR) that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for each
plan. The Department of Retirement Systems’ CAFR may be obtained by writing to:
Department of Retirement Systems, Communications Unit, P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA
98540-8380, or it may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plans 1, 2 and 3

PERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans
for membership purposes. PERS members include elected officials; state employees; employees
of the supreme, appeals and superior courts; employees of the legislature; employees of
district and municipal courts; employees of local governments; and higher education
employees not participating in higher education retirement programs. PERS is comprised of
three separate pension plans for membership purposes. PERS Plans 1 and 2 are defined-benefit
plans, and PERS Plan 3 is a defined-benefit plan with a defined-contribution component.

PERS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are
determined as 2 percent of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s
years of service. The average final compensation is the average of the member’s 24 highest
consecutive service months.
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Members are eligible for retirement from active status at any age with at least 30 years of
service, at age 55 with at least 25 years of service, or at age 60 with at least five years of
service. Members retiring from active status prior to the age of 65 may receive actuarially
reduced benefits. Retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor
benefit.

Other benefits include duty and nonduty disability payments, an optional cost-of-living
adjustment (COLA), and a one-time, duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the
Department of Labor and Industries. PERS Plan 1 members were vested after the completion of
five years of eligible service. The plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.

Contributions

The PERS Plan 1 member contribution rate is established by state statute at 6 percent. The
employer contribution rate is developed by the Office of the State Actuary and includes an
administrative expense component that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the
state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates. The PERS Plan 1
required contribution rates (expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2014 and 2015
were as follows:

PERS Plan 1
Actual Contribution Rates: Employer Employee
January 2014 through June 2015 9.21% 6.00%
July 2015 through December 2015 11.18% 6.00%

Community Transit’s actual contributions to the plan, including the Plan 1 unfunded actuarial
accrued liability? funded through Plan 2/3 rates, were $1,866,781 and $1,480,324 for the years
ended December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, respectively.

PERS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement benefits are
determined as 2 percent of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s
years of service for Plan 2 and 1 percent of average final compensation for Plan 3. The average
final compensation is the average of the member’s 60 highest-paid consecutive service months.
There is no cap on years of service credit.

Members are eligible for retirement with a full benefit at age 65 with at least five years of
service credit. Retirement before age 65 is considered an early retirement. PERS Plan 2/3
members who have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 years of age or older, are

1 Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL): The excess, if any, of the actuarial accrued liability over the actuarial
value of assets. In other words, the present value of benefits earned to date that are not covered by current plan
assets (definition courtesy of the Washington State Office of the State Actuary). For purposes of this discussion,
the UAAL is the amount of retirement that is owed to an employee in future years that exceeds current assets and
their projected growth.
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eligible for early retirement with a benefit that is reduced by a factor that varies according to
age for each year before age 65. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more years of service
credit and are at least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions:

e With a benefit that is reduced by 3 percent for each year before age 65.
or

e With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes
stricter return-to-work rules.

PERS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013, have the option to retire early by
accepting a reduction of 5 percent for each year of retirement before age 65. This option is
available only to those who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service credit.

PERS Plan 2/3 retirement benefits are also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor
benefit. Other PERS Plan 2/3 benefits include duty and nonduty disability payments, a cost-of-
living allowance (based on the Consumer Price Index) and capped at 3 percent annually, and a
one-time, duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor and
Industries.

PERS Plan 2 members are vested after completing five years of eligible service. Plan 3 members
are vested in the defined-benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service or after five
years of service if 12 months of that service are earned after age 44.

PERS Plan 3 defined contribution benefits are totally dependent on employee contributions and
investment earnings on those contributions. PERS Plan 3 members choose their contribution
rate upon joining membership and have a chance to change rates upon changing employers.

As established by statute, Plan 3 required defined contribution rates are set at a minimum of
5 percent and escalate to 15 percent with a choice of six options. Employers do not contribute
to the defined contribution benefits. PERS Plan 3 members are immediately vested in the
defined contribution portion of their plan.

Contributions

PERS Plan 2/3 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the
State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined-benefit portion of Plan 3. The Plan 2/3
employer rates include a component to address the PERS Plan 1 unfunded actuarial accrued
liability and an administrative expense that is currently set at 0.18 percent.

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 2 employer and employee
contribution rates and Plan 3 contribution rates. The PERS Plan 2/3 required contribution rates
(expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2014 and 2015 follow:
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PERS Plans 2/3

I . Employer, Employee, Employee,
Actual Contribution Rates: Plans 2/3 Plan 2 Plan 3
January 2014 through June 2015 9.21% 4.92% Varies
July 2015 through December 2015 11.18% 6.12% Varies

Community Transit’s actual contributions to the plan, excluding the Plan 1 unfunded actuarial
accrued liability contributions, were $2,373,759 and $1,806,240 for the years ended
December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, respectively.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for each of the DRS plans was determined using the most recent
actuarial valuation completed in 2015 with a valuation date of June 30, 2014. The actuarial
assumptions used in the valuation were based on the results of the Office of the State Actuary’s
2007-2012 Demographic Experience Study.

Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2014
actuarial valuation report. The total pension liability was calculated as of the valuation date and
rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2015. Plan liabilities were rolled forward
from June 30, 2014, to June 30, 2015, reflecting each plan’s normal cost (using the entry-age
cost method), assumed interest, and actual benefit payments.

e Inflation: 3 percent total economic inflation; 3.75 percent salary inflation.

e Salaryincreases: In addition to the base 3.75 percent salary inflation assumption,
salaries are also expected to grow by promotions and longevity.

e Investment rate of return: 7.5 percent.

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 report’s Combined Healthy Table and Combined
Disabled Table published by the Society of Actuaries. The Office of the State Actuary applied
offsets to the base table and recognized future improvements in mortality by projecting the
mortality rates using 100 percent Scale BB2. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis;
meaning, each member is assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future
year throughout his or her lifetime.

2 The Society of Actuaries uses Scale BB to determine pension valuations. Scale BB is based on more recent data
and newly developed techniques and can be used immediately without any changes to existing valuation software.
(Society of Actuaries, Mortality Improvement Scale BB Report, September 2012, http://www.soa.org)
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There were minor changes in methods and assumptions since the last valuation.

e The Office of the State Actuary updated demographic assumptions (consistent with
the changes from the 2007-2012 Demographic Experience Study) used when valuing
the PERS 1 basic minimum COLA.

e The Office of the State Actuary corrected how valuation software calculates a
member’s entry age under the entry age normal actuarial cost method. Previously,
the funding age was rounded, resulting in an entry age one year higher in some
cases.

e For purposes of calculating the Plan 2/3 entry age normal cost contribution rates,
the Office of the State Actuary now uses the current blend of Plan 2 and Plan 3
salaries rather than using a long-term membership assumption of two-thirds Plan 2
members and one-third Plan 3 members.

e The Office of the State Actuary changed the way it applies salary limits, as described
in their 2007-2012 Demographic Experience Study.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for all DRS plans was 7.5 percent.
To determine that rate, an asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.7 percent long-term
discount rate to determine funding liabilities for calculating future contribution rate
requirements. (All plans use 7.7 percent.)

Consistent with the long-term expected rate of return, a 7.5 percent future investment rate of
return on invested assets was assumed for the test. Contributions from plan members and
employers are assumed to continue being made at contractually required rates, including

PERS 2/3 whose rate includes a component for PERS Plan 1 liabilities. Based on these
assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return of 7.5 percent was used to determine the total liability.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return of 7.5 percent on DRS pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block-method. The Washington State Investment Board (WSIB)
used a best estimate of expected future rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense, including inflation) to develop each major asset class. Those expected
returns make up one component of the WSIB’s capital market assumptions. WSIB uses the
capital market assumptions and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment
returns at various future times. The long-term expected rate of return of 7.5 percent
approximately equals the median of the simulated investment returns over a 50-year time
horizon.
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Estimated Rates of Return by Asset Class

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015, and June 30, 2014, are summarized in
the following table. The inflation component used to create the table is 2.2 percent and
represents the WSIB’s most recent long-term estimate of broad economic inflation.

2015 % Long-Term 2014 % Long-Term

2015 Expected Real Rate 2014 Expected Real Rate
Target of Return Target of Return

Asset Class Allocation Arithmetic Allocation Arithmetic
Fixed Income 20% 1.70% 20% 0.80%
Tangible Assets 5% 4.40% 5% 4.10%
Real Estate 15% 5.80% 15% 5.30%
Global Equity 37% 6.60% 37% 6.05%
Private Equity 23% 9.60% 23% 9.05%

100% 100%

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability

The tables below presents Community Transit’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what Community Transit’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is one percentage point lower (6.5 percent) or one percentage point higher

(8.5 percent) than the current rate.

As of June 30, 2015:

1% Decrease

(6.5%)
PERS 1 $ 21,410,835
PERS 2/3 $ 44,845,945

As of June 30, 2014:
1% Decrease

(6.5%)
PERS 1 $ 20,103,133
PERS2/3 $ 34,681,244

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the state’s pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the

separately issued DRS financial report.
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Current Discount
Rate (7.5%)

17,585,864
15,336,918

Current Discount
Rate (7.5%)

16,309,562
8,314,424

1% Increase

(8.5%)
$ 14,296,739
$ (7,257,037)
1% Increase
(8.5%)
$ 13,053,155
$ (11,824,919)



Liabilities, Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2015, and June 30, 2014, Community Transit reported total pension liabilities of
$32,922,782 and $24,623,986, respectively, for its proportionate share of the net pension
liabilities as shown:
2015 Liability 2014 Liability
PERS 1 $ 17,585,864 $ 16,309,562

PERS 2/3 $ 15,336,918 $ 8,314,424

Community Transit’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liabilities was as follows:

Proportionate Proportionate Change in

Share 6/30/2015 Share 6/30/2014 Proportion

PERS 1 0.336190% 0.323760% 0.012430%
PERS 2/3 0.429238% 0.411328% 0.017910%

Employer contribution transmittals received and processed by the DRS for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2015, and June 30, 2014 were used as the basis for determining each
employer’s proportionate share of the collective pension amounts reported by the DRS in their
Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer Allocations.

The collective net pension liabilities were based on the actuarial valuation date of June 30,
2014. Update procedures were used to roll forward the total pension liability to the
measurement date of June 30, 2015.

Pension Expense

For the years ended December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, Community Transit
recognized pension expense as shown:

2015 Pension 2014 Pension
Expense Expense

PERS 1 $ 1,739,216 $ 1,501,068
PERS2/3 $ 1,976,831 $ 1,831,555
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Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

At December 31, 2015, Community Transit reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

2015 2014
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
PERS 1 Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
Differences between expected and $ i $ i $ i $ i

actual experience

Net difference between projected and
actual investment earnings on - 962,139 - 2,039,419
pension plan investments

Changes of assumptions - - - -

Changes in proportion and differences
between contributions and - - - -
proportionate share of contributions

Contributions subsequent to the

1,072,667 - 751,450 -
measurement date
Total $ 1,072,667 $ 962,139 $ 751,450 $ 2,039,419
2015 2014

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
PERS 2/3 Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources Resources Resources
Differences between expected and $ 1630319 $ i $ i $ i

actual experience

Net difference between projected and
actual investment earnings on - 4,094,231 - 8,813,365
pension plan investments

Changes of assumptions 24,711 - - -

Changes in proportion and differences
between contributions and 576,281 - = =
proportionate share of contributions

Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total $ 3,615,947 $ 4,094,231 $ 922,487 $ 8,813,365

1,384,636 - 922,487 -

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Community Transit’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year.
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as shown:

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 PERS 1 December 31 HARSZE
2016 $  (372,892) 2016 $  (942,107)
2017 (372,892) 2017 (942,107)
2018 (372,892) 2018 (942,111)
2019 156,537 2019 963,405
Thereatfter - Thereatfter -
Total $  (962,139) Total $ (1,862,920)

Note 7: Risk Pool

In December 1988, Community Transit signed an interlocal government agreement with seven
Washington public transit systems for the joint purchase of liability insurance, joint self-
insurance, and joint contracting for hiring of personnel to provide risk management, claims
handling, and administrative services. The agreement created an agency known as the
Washington State Transit Insurance Pool (WSTIP). The purpose of the pool is stabilization of
present insurance costs and reduction of costs in the long-term future.

The pool is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of a representative of each member
system. Participating transit systems as of December 31, 2015, include:

e Asotin County PTBA. e Kitsap Transit.
e Ben Franklin Transit. e Link Transit.
e Clallam Transit System. e Mason Transit Authority.

Columbia Area Transit.
Community Transit.
C-Tran.

Everett Transit.

Grant County Transit.

Grays Harbor Transportation
Authority.

Intercity Transit.
Island Transit.

Jefferson Transit Authority.
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Pacific Transit System.
Pierce Transit.

Pullman Transit.

River Cities Transit.

Skagit Transit.

Spokane Transit.

Twin Transit.

Valley Transit.

Whatcom Transit Authority.

Yakima Transit.
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The pool self-insures the first $2 million of all liability claims; after the first $2 million, the next
$3 million is provided by Government Entities Mutual, Inc. PCC. Private carriers supply the
remaining liability coverages up to the $20 million limit on a per-occurrence basis for auto and
general liability and on a per-claim basis for errors and omissions. In addition, the pool provides
property, comprehensive, auto physical damage, and crime coverage. A complete annual report
including financial statements is available at http://www.wstip.org.

The next table summarizes audited financial information for the pool as of December 31, 2014.

2014
Assets $ 37,159,570
Liabilities 175,031
Resene for Claims 16,555,981
Net Position 20,428,558
Total Liabilities & Net Position 37,159,570
Operating Revenues 11,783,693
Operating Expenses 12,289,462
Operating Income (Loss) (505,769)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 438,009
Change in Net Position (67,760)
Net Position - Beginning of Year 20,496,318
Net Position - End of Year $ 20,428,558

Washington State law prohibits the distribution of profits from insurance pools to member
agencies. Accordingly, the financial statements do not reflect any equity in the Washington
State Transit Insurance Pool.
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Note 8: Insurance

A. Liability Insurance

Community Transit joined the Washington State Transit Insurance Pool (WSTIP) in December
1988 for coverage effective January 1, 1989. Community Transit assumes the liability for claims
up to the deductible amounts listed in the following table for each type of risk. Risk of claims in
excess of the deductible amount has been transferred to WSTIP.

In 2015 WSTIP provided the coverage as shown in this table.

Comprehensive General Liability $20,000,000 per occurrence with no deductible
Auto Liability, Garage Keepers, and Garage Legal $20,000,000 per occurrence with no deductible
Liability

Public Official Liability $20,000,000 per occurrence with $5,000 deductible
Crime Coverage/Public Employee Dishonesty $1,000,000 per occurrence with $10,000 deductible
Property Damage Insurance: $1,000,000,000 blanket limit with $5,000 deductible

Property—Building, Personal, Auto Physical (All
Vehicles), Boiler, Machinery, and Cyber Liability

Pollution Liability $5,000,000 aggregate with $100,000 self-insured
retention and $5,000 deductible

Pollution Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence with $25,000

(Underground Fuel Storage Tanks deductible

Claim settlements in the past three years did not exceed insurance coverage.

B. Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation and Unemployment Compensation

Community Transit continues to be self-insured for unemployment compensation and workers’
compensation (industrial insurance), with excess workers’ compensation retained consistent
with statutory requirements.

On December 31, 2015, cash and investments set aside for self-insurance totaled $6,517,408.
Community Transit reported a liability on December 31, 2015, of $2,409,000, which represents
the estimated liability for workers’ compensation claims for which Community Transit may
ultimately be liable, including a provision for claims incurred but not yet reported. Of the
$2,409,000 estimated liability, Community Transit expects to pay out $840,000 within the
coming year, and the remaining $1,569,000 is expected to be paid out later than one year.

No outstanding liabilities have been removed from the Comparative Statements of Net Position
due to the purchase of annuity contracts from third parties in the name of the claimants. In
addition to the reserve, Community Transit purchased a commercial workers’ compensation
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policy with a $1,000,000 limit per occurrence and a $550,000 self-insured retention per
occurrence.

In 2015, Community Transit paid out $53,484 in unemployment compensation claims, and
$86,637 in 2014. There is no accrued liability for future unemployment claims. The following
table shows the claims liabilities for Workers’ Compensation:

2015 2014

Total Claims Liability : Beginning of Year $ 2,425,000 $ 2,312,000
Incurred Claims:

Provision for Incurred Claims 1,411,000 1,374,000

Change in Provision for Incurred Claims, Prior Year (373,305) (203,108)
Total Provision for Incurred Claims 1,037,695 1,170,892
Total Incurred 3,462,695 3,482,892
Payments:

Payment Made for Current-Year Claims 288,695 379,330

Payment Made for Prior-Year Claims 765,000 678,562
Total Payments 1,053,695 1,057,892
Total Claims Liability: End of Year $ 2,409,000 $ 2,425,000

Note 9: Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the following changes occurred in long-term
liabilities:

Beginning Ending
Note Description Balance Balance Due Within
12/31/2014 Additions  Reductions 12/31/2015 One Year
9 A. General Obligation Bonds $ 3,545,000 $ - $ (1,745,000) $ 1,800,000 $ 1,800,000
Premiums 39,993 - (29,136) 10,857 10,857
Total Bonds Payable 3,584,993 - (1,774,136) 1,810,857 1,810,857
9 B. Compensated Absences 4,022,067 460,820 - 4,482,887 3,461,688
Workers' Compensation 2,425,000 - (16,000) 2,409,000 840,000
9 C. Pension Obligations 24,623,986 8,298,796 - 32,922,782 -
9 D. OPEB Obligations 4,708,569 701,953 - 5,410,522 -

Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 39,364,615 $9,461,569 $ (1,790,136) $ 47,036,048 $ 6,112,545
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A. Bonds Payable

Limited sales tax, general-obligation bonds were issued in 2004 for the purchase of capital
assets. Of the total 2004 bond proceeds, $1,200,000 was used to fund the reserve account, and
$180,673 was used to pay the bond issue costs. On June 3, 2010, Community Transit issued
$5,240,000 in limited sales tax, general-obligation refunding bonds, Series 2010, to fully refund
outstanding 2004 bonds and pay for issuance costs for the Series 2010 bonds. An economic gain
of $54,256 resulted from the refunding transaction. The difference between the cash flows
required to service the outstanding 2004 bonds and to service the new debt was a loss that is
recorded as a deferred outflow of resources and is being amortized over the remaining life of
the 2004 bonds.

The Series 2010 bond interest is payable on February 1 and August 1 of each year commencing
February 1, 2011, and ending August 1, 2016. The bonds are not subject to redemption prior to
their maturity. The bonds have a coupon rate of 3 percent with varying maturities ranging from
2014 to 2016. These bonds are subject to federal arbitrage rules. As of December 31, 2015, the
2010 bonds are the only outstanding issued debt held by Community Transit.

As of As of
12/31/2015 12/31/2014
Current Portion of Bonds Payable $ 1,800,000 $ 1,745,000
Long-Term Portion of Bonds Payable - 1,800,000

Total Bonds Payable  $1,800,000  $3,545,000

The table below reflects 2015 bonds payable activity.

Beginning Ending Amount Due

Balance Reductions via Balance in 2016 -
Bond Type 12/31/2014 Issuance Principal 12/31/2015 Principal Only
Series 2010 $3,545,000 $ - $ 1,745000 $ 1,800,000 $ 1,800,000

The following table presents the annual principal and interest debt service amounts:

Annual Debt Service

Total Debt
Year Rate Principal Interest Service
2016 3.00% 1,800,000 54,000 1,854,000
Total $ 1,800,000 $ 54,000 $ 1,854,000

B. Compensated Absences

The two categories of compensated absences are paid time off (PTO) and major sick leave
(MSL). As of December 31, 2015, PTO payable was $3,209,907 as compared to $2,833,483 for
the same period in 2014. The 2015 current portion amounted to $3,103,980, which was an
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increase of $383,836 compared to the 2014 amount of $2,720,144. The amount classified as
long term was $105,927, which was a decrease of $7,412 over the 2014 amount of $113,339.

As of December 31, 2015, the vested portion of MSL payable was $1,272,979 as compared to
$1,188,583 for the same period in 2014. The 2015 current portion amounted to $357,707,
which was an increase of $226,963 compared to the 2014 amount of $130,744. The amount
classified as long term was $915,272, which was a decrease of $142,567 over the 2014 amount
of $1,057,839. Schedules for all categories of compensated absences follow.

The PTO short-term and long-term classification is based on a five-year historical average of
leave paid as a percentage of the liability.

Paid Time Off (PTO) 2015 2014
Beginning Balance - Current Liability $ 2,720,144 $ 2,509,251
PTO Earned 5,092,847 4,334,348
PTO Paid (4,709,011) (4,123,455)
Ending Balance - Current Liability 3,103,980 2,720,144
Beginning Balance - Long-Term Liability 113,339 132,066
PTO Earned 138,228 153,084
PTO Paid (145,640) (171,811)

Ending Balance - Long-Term Liability $ 105927 $ 113,339

The MSL short-term and long-term classification is based on a five-year historical average on
leave paid as a percentage of the liability.

Major Sick Leave (MSL) 2015 2014
Beginning Balance - Current Liability $ 130,744 % 157,709
MSL Earned 412,231 32,325
MSL Paid (185,268) (59,290)
Ending Balance - Current Liability 357,707 130,744
Beginning Balance - Long-Term Liability 1,057,839 968,787
MSL Earned 333,835 568,758
MSL Paid (476,402) (479,706)

Ending Balance - Long-Term Liability $ 915272 $ 1,057,839

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 58



C. Pensions

Please refer to Note 6—Pensions.

D. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

In 2009, Community Transit implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards for benefits that are earned during an employee’s
active service but will not be paid until after the employee retires.

Plan Description: During the working careers of active employees, Community Transit
contributes to the state Public Employees Benefits Board (PEBB), a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer, defined-benefit, healthcare program administered by the Washington State Health
Care Authority (HCA), an agent. The program provides medical, prescription drug, and vision
coverage.

HCA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the program. That report may be obtained by writing to HCA,
P.O. Box 42682, Olympia, WA 98504-2682. No stand-alone financial statements are available
for the program.

Under state law, active Community Transit employees who are covered by the state public
employee retirement system are eligible upon retirement to obtain medical, prescription drug,
and vision coverage through the state PEBB program at the retiree rate associated with the
elected plan. Because the rate is based on a pool of both active employees and retirees, the
rate paid by pre-Medicare retirees is less than the full cost of the benefits, based on their age
and other demographic factors.

This creates an implicit subsidy where the “underpayment” of retiree premiums is funded
through the premiums paid by Community Transit for active employees. Additionally, an explicit
subsidy exists for Medicare-eligible retirees enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B. For 2015, the
explicit subsidy is the lessor of 50 percent of the monthly premium or $150.00 per month. The
rate was $150.00 for 2014. This explicit subsidy is also funded through premiums paid by
Community Transit for active employees.

Funding Policy: The HCA calculates the premium amounts each year that are sufficient to fund
the program on a pay-as-you-go basis. These costs are passed through to all participating
agencies based on active employee headcount.
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Annual OPEB costs and the net OPEB obligation for 2015, 2014, and 2013 follow.

Annual OPEB Cost 2015 2014 2013
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 908,174  $ 680,651 $ 680,651
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 211,886 190,167 167,169
Adjustment to ARC (289,065) (259,435) (228,060)
Annual OPEB Cost $ 830,995 $ 611,383 $ 619,760

Net OPEB Obligation 2015 2014 2013
Net OPEB Obligation—Beginning of Year $ 4,708,569 $ 4,225,937 $ 3,714,857
Annual OPEB Cost 830,995 611,383 619,760
Employer Contribution Made (129,042) (128,751) (108,680)
Net OPEB Obligation—End of Year $ 5,410,522 $ 4,708,569 $ 4,225,937
Increase/Decrease in Net OPEB $ 701,953 $ 482632 $ 511,080
Employer Percentage Contribution 16% 21% 18%

Funded Status and Funding Progress: The disclosures for the funded status and funding
progress are presented immediately after the Notes to the Financial Statements in the required
supplementary information section. The disclosures are based on a biannual basis.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, investment rate of return, payroll growth
rate, and the healthcare cost trend.

Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes
are based on the substantive plan (the program as understood by the employer and the plan
members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and program members to
that point.

The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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Community Transit performed an actuarial study as of December 31, 2015, in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The actuary calculated the OPEB obligation based
on individual Community Transit employee data, including age, retirement eligibility, and length
of service. The probability of an employee of a given age and length of service retiring and
receiving OPEB benefits is based on statewide historical data.

Community Transit will use a third-party vendor to complete the actuarial report every two
years. In the interim years between valuations, the actuary will update the annual OPEB cost
and the net OPEB obligation. All other assumptions and data will remain the same. The
actuarial report is available upon request from Community Transit. The next table summarizes
actuarial assumptions used:

Description Actuarial Assumption
Valuation Date December 31, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit
Investment Rate of Return 4.5% per year
Inflation Rate 3% per year
Projected Salary Increases 2% for 2015 adjustment of covered payroll
Health Care Cost Trend Rates All years: 5%
Post-Retirement Benefit Increases No increases are projected.
Amortization Method Level dollar amount on an open basis over a period of
30 years.

Note 10: Net Position

Portions of Community Transit’s net position are restricted for the following purposes:

e Debt Service: Funds restricted by bond covenant for payment of principal and
interest.

e Workers’ Compensation: Funds legally restricted by Washington State Department
of Labor and Industries for payment of self-insured workers’ compensation claims.

In addition, Community Transit’s Board of Directors has designated portions of Community
Transit’s net position under the following categories:

e Vehicle Replacement: Funds set aside for future replacement of buses, paratransit
vehicles, and vanpools.

e Future Capital Improvements: Amounts designated to fund capital projects.

e Workers’ Compensation: Additional funds set aside in excess of the state-required
restrictions for the payment of workers’ compensation claims.
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The next table shows net position as reported on the balance sheets, including the breakdown
of designated and undesignated net position, as of December 31, 2015, and December 31,
2014.

2015 2014
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 178,831,358 $ 157,546,954
Restricted Net Position
Debt Senice 551,861 551,861
Workers' Compensation 1,803,750 1,741,000
Total Restricted Net Position 2,355,611 2,292,861
Unrestricted Net Position
Designated - Vehicle Replacement 39,878,935 37,636,848
Designated - Future Capital Improvements 38,851,648 39,277,694
Designated - Workers Compensation 2,272,890 1,789,450
Undesignated 27,727,759 19,968,006
Total Unrestricted Net Position 108,731,233 98,671,998
Net Position $ 289,918,202 $ 258,511,813
Note 11: Commitments
A. Paratransit Service (DART)
On September 9, 2011, Community Transit entered into a five- 100,000
year contract with Senior Services of Snohomish County for the Revenue Service Hours
provision of paratransit service. Year Annual Cost
The contract terms cover the period October 1, 2011, through 1 $ 6,417,520
September 30, 2016, with renewal options for five additional 2 6,569,659
one-year terms. The annual cost for 100,000 annual revenue 3 6,726,583
hours over the five-year period is shown in the table at right. 4 6,886,620
5 7,051,588

The annual cost of paratransit service is within the annual
budget. Contracted services with Senior Services amounted to $6,533,980 during 2015
compared to $6,704,149 in 2014. Actual annual vehicle hours amounted to 85,058 for 2015,
compared to 84,349 for 2014.
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B. Commuter Service

On May 9, 2012, Community Transit entered into a multiyear contract with First Transit. Under
the terms of the contract, First Transit will operate Community Transit’s express commuter bus
service for a five-year, seven-month period with renewal options for five additional one-year
term extensions beginning January 1, 2018.

First Transit operates the service from Community Transit’s Kasch Park Base under the terms of
the facility lease provisions of the commuter service agreement. The annual cost of the service
for the five-year, seven-month period, which includes 92,560 service hours of Sound Transit
express commuter service, is shown below.

Contract Period Revenue Service Hours Annual Cost
Jun 09, 2012 to Dec 31, 2013 196,133 $ 25,102,589
Jan 01, 2014 to Dec 31, 2014 124,040 $ 16,352,081
Jan 01, 2015 to Dec 31, 2015 124,040 $ 16,842,643
Jan 01, 2016 to Dec 31, 2016 124,040 $ 17,347,923
Jan 01, 2017 to Dec 31, 2017 124,040 $ 17,868,360

The annual cost is within the annual budget. Contract service with First Transit for Community
Transit service amounted to $4,638,123 in 2015 compared to $4,448,041 in 2014. Actual annual
revenue hours amounted to 37,907 in 2015 as compared to 36,876 in 2014.

Contract service with First Transit for Sound Transit service amounted to $12,625,307 in 2015
compared to $12,218,794 in 2014. Actual revenue hours amounted to 92,752 in 2015 as
compared to 91,065 for 2014.

C. Central Puget Sound Regional Fare Coordination System

Community Transit has an undivided interest in a nonequity joint venture, jointly governed with
six other Puget Sound-area public transit agencies for the provision of regional ORCA card fare
collection services.

On April 14, 2009, Community Transit entered into an amended interlocal agreement with King
County Metro Transit, Pierce Transit, Sound Transit, Everett Transit, Kitsap Transit, and the
Washington State Ferries to provide for joint operation of the Central Puget Sound Regional
Fare Coordination System. The regional fare coordination system began a phased
implementation on April 1, 2009, with substantial deployment in 2010. The system is governed
by a joint board consisting of one representative from each participating agency. The
participating agencies have committed to use the system for a minimum of ten years and fund
a proportional share of regional shared costs.

Under the terms of the interlocal agreement, Sound Transit acts as the fiscal agent.
Participating agencies remit all funds collected through the sale of ORCA fare media to Sound
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Transit. When customers use ORCA cards to pay transit fares, statistical information is collected
which determines how Sound Transit remits fare revenue back to participating agencies.

Community Transit’s undivided interests in the assets, liabilities, and operations of the ORCA
smart card are consolidated within these financial statements on a proportionate basis.
Expenses associated with the regional fare coordination system are shared proportionally by
each participating agency. The joint venture does not publish public financial statements.
Please direct requests for information about the joint venture’s financial statements to Lori Fox
at the address shown in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this report.

The following table represents the amount included in Community Transit’s financial
statements that is an undivided interest:

Current Assets 2015 2014

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,051,669 $ 1,838,891

Accounts Receivable 2,546,315 2,200,205
Total Assets $ 4597984 $ 4,039,096

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 2,932,888 2,732,280
Deferred Receipts 1,665,095 1,306,816
Total Liabilities $ 4597983 $ 4,039,096
Total Operating Revenues $ 15,146,551 $ 14,254,517
Total Expenses $ 449,803 % 504,313
D. Transit Police Contract with Snohomish County

On December 4, 2014, Community Transit’s Board of Directors approved a new interlocal
agreement with Snohomish County to continue the police services which the Snohomish
County Sheriff’s Office has provided since April 2003.

Under the terms of the new agreement, the county provides

Year Annual Cost 6 fyll-time sergeant, one full-time administrative staff
2015 $ 1,560,598 person, one full-time master patrol deputy, and nine full-time
2016 1,607,416 commissioned sheriff’s deputies who patrol Community
2017 1,655,638 Transit’s services and facilities on a regular basis and perform

other related services.

The contract term is January 1, 2015, to December 31, 2017. The annual cost of these services
over the life of the contract is summarized above.

Costs in 2015 were slightly below the annual budget. The cost of police services provided to
Community Transit amounted to $1,452,638 in 2015 as compared to $1,198,808 in 2014.
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E. Double-Decker Coach Contract

On July 2, 2009, Community Transit entered into a five-year contract with Alexander Dennis for
the purchase of up to 120 double-decker coaches over the term of the contract. Future price
changes are limited to the change in the Producer Price Index for similar equipment. The actual
number of future purchases depends on Community Transit’s future needs and available
funding.

Under the terms of this contract, other transit agencies may purchase buses provided that such
purchases are within the stated quantity and the participating agency assumes all purchasing
responsibilities. The Board approved an initial order of 23 coaches at a cost of $21,675,238. All
were delivered by the end of June 2011. No purchases were made in 2012. An order for 17
coaches was placed in 2013; 16 coaches were delivered in 2015, and the remaining coach is
scheduled for 2016 delivery. An additional five coaches were ordered in 2014 with delivery
scheduled for 2016.

F. Transit Technologies

On February 7, 2008, Community Transit awarded a contract to INIT in the amount of
$13,377,228 to develop and implement a suite of transit technologies. (In financial reports for
previous years, this suite of technologies was referred to as Advanced Public Transportation
Systems or APTS.) The transit technologies suite includes automatic vehicle locators, automated
passenger counters, automated stop annunciation, computer-aided dispatch, advanced traveler
information systems, data radio, and mobile data terminals.

Phase | was completed in 2011 with implementation of the system for paratransit service.
Phase Il, installation of the system for fixed-route service, was completed in 2013.
Implementing these technologies has improved agency efficiency through faster access to more
reliable system data, leading to better fleet management and improved on-time performance,
and providing consumers with access to real-time transit information.

Ten percent retainage in the amount of $1 million was returned to INIT in July 2015. Annual
project costs are within the 2015 budget. For 2015, Community Transit’s transit technologies
contract costs amounted to $1,513,036 as compared to $1,072,650 in 2014.

G. Express Bus Operating Agreement with Sound Transit

Community Transit has operated Sound Transit’s express bus service since September 1999. On
June 4, 2015, Community Transit’s Board of Directors approved a new agreement with Sound
Transit to continue operating Sound Transit express bus service. The agreement covers various
aspects of providing the service including operations, vehicle maintenance, fare collection, and
security. The first year of this agreement ended on December 31, 2015; all subsequent years of
this agreement begin on January 1 and end on December 31. The agreement expires on
December 31, 2017, but includes an option to extend for two additional one-year periods. In
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2015, Community Transit received $16,600,685 from Sound Transit compared to $16,870,539 in
2014.

H. Five-Year Bus Purchase Contracts

Community Transit entered into five-year contracts with New Flyer of America on June 4, 2010,
and GILLIG LLC - USA on June 29, 2010, for the purchase of up to 203 coaches over the term of
the contracts.

Future price changes are limited to the change in the Producer Price Index for similar
equipment. The actual number of future purchases depends on Community Transit’s needs and
available funding. Under the terms of this contract other transit agencies may purchase buses
provided that such purchases are within the stated quantity and the participating agency
assumes all purchasing responsibilities.

In 2015 Community Transit placed an order with New Flyer of America amounting to
$9,553,460 for nineteen 40-foot coaches; these coaches were delivered in 2015. Community
Transit also placed two more coach orders in 2015: ten 60-foot coaches from New Flyer of
American and five double-decker coaches from Alexander Dennis Limited. The 60-foot coaches
and double-deckers are scheduled for delivery in 2016.

l. Lease Obligation

As of December 31, 2015, Community Transit had no capital leases and various operating
leases. Total operating lease expense for 2015 was $318,687 compared to $299,318 in 2014.
The leases consist of the park-and-pool lot program, communication sites, Pitney Bowes, and
copiers. Both the park-and-pool lot program and the

communication site leases are cancellable by either party with a Year Annual Cost
30- to 90-day notice depending on the contract. The Pitney Bowes 2016 $ 33.927
and copier leases are more than one year and noncancelable. 2017 8251
Future minimum lease commitments for noncancelable leases of '
2018 2,461

more than one year are listed here.

Note 12: Contingencies

A. Legal Proceedings

There are several pending lawsuits in which Community Transit is involved. Community
Transit’s attorney estimates that the potential claim against Community Transit not covered by
insurance resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the financial statements.
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B. Federal Grants

Community Transit has received several federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement of expenditures
disallowed under the terms of the grant. In the opinion of management, such disallowances, if
any, will be immaterial and will not have any significant effect on the financial position of
Community Transit.

C. Environmental Liability

As a public transit operation, Community Transit has certain environmental risks related to its
operation involving the storage, liability, and disposal of certain petroleum products. In the
opinion of management, any potential claim not covered by insurance would not materially
affect the financial statements of Community Transit.

Note 13: Subsequent Events

Community Transit has evaluated subsequent events through June 2016. On July 16, 2015, the
Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 08-15, calling for an election to ask the voters to
authorize Community Transit to impose an additional three-tenths of 1 percent (0.3 percent)
retail sales and use tax as authorized by RCW 82.14.045.

This proposition, known as Snohomish County Proposition 1, was passed by voters in the
Snohomish County general election on November 3, 2015. It authorized 0.3 percent additional
sales and use tax to fund operating, maintenance, and capital improvements to the existing
Community Transit system. These improvements will include more bus trips and connections,
operation of a second line of Swift bus rapid transit, and new routes and service throughout the
county, including connections to the future regional light-rail network.

The additional 0.3 percent sales and use tax will take effect April 1, 2016. Community Transit
will receive distributions of the additional 0.3 percent tax beginning in late June 2016.

This additional funding has allowed Community Transit to plan substantial service increases in
2016, 2017, and 2018, and more modest increases from 2019 through 2021. A small increase of
about 4,700 annualized revenue hours occurred in March 2016 and a larger increase will occur
in September 2016.

The September 2016 service increase consists of 32,000 annualized hours, including two new
bus routes and numerous service enhancements. Community Transit plans to add
approximately 27,000 annualized hours in 2017 and 45,000 annualized hours in 2018. The 2018
service increase is due primarily to implementation of a new Swift Il bus rapid transit line.
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Note 14: Status of Active Grants

The status of Federal Transit Administration operating grants active as of December 31, 2015,
follows:

Operating Grants

Accrued Accrued
Total Grant: Receipts Unexpended Receipts
FTA Grant No. Federal Share To-Date Grant Current Year

GCB1947 $ 173,726 $ 173,726  $ - $ 71,320
GCB2036 372,727 66,703 306,024 66,703
WA-54-0005 919,210 919,210 - 919,210
WA-90-X527 5,169,710 3,650,794 1,518,916 1,505,971
WA-90-X574 5,121,185 5,121,185 - 2,121,185
WA-95-X062 860,000 860,000 - 267,265
WA-95-X087 884,391 394,306 490,085 394,306

The status of Federal Transit Administration capital grants active as of December 31, 2015,
follows:

Capital Grants

Accrued Accrued
Total Grant: Receipts Unexpended Receipts
FTA Grant No. Federal Share To-Date Grant Current Year

GCB1855 $ 1,376,000 $ 1,376,000 $ = $ 1,376,000
New TrAMS Grant A 486,035 486,035 - 486,035
New TrAMS Grant B 862,299 611,257 251,042 611,257
WA-04-0083 894,578 894,578 - 721,684
WA-04-0096 1,337,512 1,337,512 - 289,053
WA-34-0006 1,380,671 1,380,671 - 1,380,671
WA-54-0005 5,677,575 4,965,454 712,121 4,965,454
WA-90-X454 1,349,267 1,349,267 - 1,349,267
WA-90-X493 500,000 454,757 45,243 172,658
WA-90-X519 1,600,000 1,590,078 9,922 628,904
WA-90-X520 2,157,858 2,148,314 9,544 1,356,398
WA-90-X588 2,240,000 1,174,795 1,065,205 1,174,795
WA-90-X589 9,098,220 4,615,623 4,482,597 4,615,623
WA-95-X062 1,380,000 1,380,000 - 1,380,000
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Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Last 10 Fiscal Years* (as of June 30)

PERS Plan 1

2015 2014
Employer's proportion of the net pension liability 0.336190% 0.323760%
I-Emp-loyers proportionate share of the net pension $ 17,585,864 $ 16.309.562
liability
Employer's covered payroll $ 203,389 $ 212,639
I-Emp.loyers proportionate share of the net pension 8,646.42% 7.670.07%
liability as a percentage of covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 59 10% 61.19%
covered payroll
PERS Plans 2/3

2015 2014
Employer's proportion of the net pension liability 0.429238% 0.411328%
I'Em.p'loyers proportionate share of the net pension $ 15.336.918 $ 8314424
liability
Employer's covered payroll $ 38,087,086 $ 35,246,857
I'Emp'loyers proportionate share of the net pension 40.27% 23.59%
liability as a percentage of covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 89.20% 93.29%

covered payroll

* Until a full ten-year trend is completed, information is presented only for the years

available.
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Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years* (as of December 31)

PERS Plan 1
2015 2014
Statutorily or contractually required contributions $ 1,866,781 $ 1,480,324
Contributions in relation to the statutorily or
contractually required contributions (1,866,781) (1,480,324)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ -
Covered employer payroll $ 166,584 $ 223,361
Contributions as a percentage of covered 1,120.62% 662.75%
employee payroll
PERS Plans 2/3
2015 2014
Statutorily or contractually required contributions  $ 2,373,759 $ 1,806,240
Contributions in relation to the statutorily or
contractually required contributions (2,373,759) (1,806,240)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ -
Covered employer payroll $ 42,403,091 $ 36,083,840
Contributions as a percentage of covered 5 60% 501%

employee payroll

* Until a full ten-year trend is completed, information is presented only for the years

available.
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Required Supplementary Information

Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (OPEB)

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuary UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuary Accrued Percent of
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
12/31/2011 $0 $ 6,107,919 $ 6,107,919 0.0% $ 36,554,787 17%
12/31/2013 $0 $ 6,179,625 $ 6,179,625 0.0% $ 32,900,679 19%
12/31/2015 $0 $ 7,407,700 $ 7,407,700 0.0% $ 39,542,354 19%

GASB Statements No. 25 and 27 now require only biennial valuations with no updates between valuations.

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Actual

Fiscal Year Annual Employer Percentage Net OPEB

Ended OPEB Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation
12/31/2011  $ 790,915 $ 111,571 14% $ 3,066,673
12/31/2012 $ 779,780 $ 131,595 17% $ 3,714,858
12/31/2013 $ 619,760 $ 108,680 18% $ 4,225,937
12/31/2014 $ 611,383 $ 128,751 21% $ 4,708,569
12/31/2015 $ 830,995 $ 129,042 16% $ 5,410,522
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE

The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and
serves four-year terms.

We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision of government that works for
citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater
public trust.

In fulfilling our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public
resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and
operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees.

As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence necessary to objectively
perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards
as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws.

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local
governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.

The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available
on our website and through our free, electronic subscription service.

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously, and provide training and technical
assistance to governments, and have an extensive quality assurance program.

Contact information for the State Auditor’s Office

Public Records requests | PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov

Main telephone | (360) 902-0370

Toll-free Citizen Hotline | (866) 902-3900

Website | www.sao.wa.gov
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http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/FraudProgram.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/Whistleblower.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/CitizenHotline.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://portal.sao.wa.gov/saoportal/Login.aspx
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